

# **CONSTITUTION OF THE PANHELLENIC COUNCIL AT THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS AT SAN ANTONIO**

## **ARTICLE I. NAME**

The name of this organization shall be the Panhellenic Council at the University of Texas at San Antonio.

## **ARTICLE II. OBJECT**

The object of the Panhellenic Council shall be to develop and maintain Greek Life and interfraternity relations at a high level of accomplishment and in so doing to:

- A. Consider the goals and ideals of member chapters as continually applicable to campus and personal life.
- B. Promote superior scholarship as basic to intellectual achievement.
- C. Cooperate with member chapters and the university administration in concern for and maintenance of high social and moral standards.
- D. Act in accordance with National Panhellenic Conference UNANIMOUS AGREEMENTS and policies.
- E. Act in accordance with such rules established by Panhellenic Council as do not violate the sovereignty, rights and privileges of member chapters.

## **ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP**

The Panhellenic Council will not deny membership on any basis prohibited by law, including but not limited to race, color, national origin, age, religion, disability, veteran's status, or sexual orientation. However, the Panhellenic Council is closed to women's fraternities and sororities only. There shall be three classes of membership: Regular Provisional and Associate, each defined as follows:

- A. The regular membership of the University of Texas at San Antonio Panhellenic Council shall be composed of all chapters in good standing of National Panhellenic Conference fraternities.
- B. The Provisional membership of the University of Texas at San Antonio Panhellenic Council shall be composed of all chapters in good standing of National Panhellenic Conference colonies.
- C. The Associate membership of the University of Texas at San Antonio Panhellenic Council shall be composed of all chapters in good standing of non-National Panhellenic Conference groups who have met the requirements of membership in Panhellenic Council. Those requirements include all those outlined in the UTSA Expansion policies and the following:
  1. Maintain a minimum of 15 members
  2. Adhere to all components of the PHC Constitution (i.e. academics, dues, fines, etc). The only exclusion to Associate membership is following the UTSA Panhellenic Council Recruitment Rules.
  3. Associate members have a voice and a vote on issues that directly affect them (i.e. programming, non-National Panhellenic Conference group expansion, electing officers, etc).

## **ARTICLE IV. EXECUTIVE BOARD**

The administrative body of the Panhellenic Council shall be the Panhellenic Executive Board. The Executive Board shall serve as officers of the Panhellenic Council and shall have such powers as are prescribed in the Bylaws of the UTSA Panhellenic Council. They shall oversee all business related to the overall welfare of the Panhellenic Council including recruitment (which do not violate the sovereignty, rights, and privileges of member chapters).

- A. The officers of the University of Texas at San Antonio Panhellenic Council shall be composed of the Executive Board, assistants, and a junior and senior delegate from each group.
- B. The officers shall be from chapters holding regular membership in the Panhellenic Council. Delegates from chapters holding associate membership shall not be eligible to hold an elected office.
- C. The officers shall serve for a term of one year, January 1 to December 31, to begin no later than the first Panhellenic Council meeting of the spring semester.
- D. Executive Meetings of the Panhellenic Council shall be held at a time and place established at the beginning of each college term.
- E. Any elected officer failing to perform her duties as outlined shall resign and a successor shall be designated by the Executive Board and approved by the Panhellenic Council.
- F. Any misuse of Panhellenic Council funds will result in removal of office immediately.
- G. Officers shall not be members of their respective chapter's executive board.
  1. The voting members of the Panhellenic Council shall be the senior delegate from each member group.
  2. An Executive Officer, Delegate, or Assistant should notify the Panhellenic President or Secretary at least 24 hours prior to the meeting time, if that person cannot attend the meeting. There is a \$10.00 fine for being tardy, missing a meeting, or an unexcused absence. The junior delegate shall incur a \$5.00 fine for being tardy, missing a meeting or

an unexcused absence. If the delegate does not pay the fine in full by the end of the month, then that particular chapter will not have a vote until all fines are paid.

#### **ARTICLE V. THE PANHELLENIC COUNCIL**

- A. **MEMBERSHIP.** The Panhellenic Council shall be composed of the Executive Board, assistants, and one delegate from each group.
- B. **SELECTION**  
Delegates to Panhellenic Council shall be selected by their respective chapters to serve for a term of one year. Whenever possible, the delegate should be an executive officer of the chapter.  
The elected officers shall be selected by following the procedures outlined in the Panhellenic Council Bylaws Article II.
- C. **VACANCIES.**
  - 1. When a delegate vacancy occurs, it shall be the responsibility of the chapter concerned to select a replacement within two (2) weeks and to notify the Panhellenic Council Secretary of her name, address, and telephone number. When a meeting of Panhellenic Council occurs while a delegate vacancy exists, the chapter must send an alternate to fulfill the duties of the delegate.
  - 2. When an elected officer vacancy occurs the Executive Board will appoint the successor with approval by the Panhellenic Council.
- D. **OFFICERS.** The elected officers of the Panhellenic Council shall serve as the Executive Board. The Executive Board shall have such powers and duties as are prescribed in the Bylaws of the Panhellenic Council.
- E. **MEETINGS**
  - 1. Regular meetings of the Panhellenic Council, known as General Assembly, shall be held at a time and place established by the Executive Board at the beginning of each college term or semester.
  - 2. A Special meeting of the Panhellenic Council may be called by the President when necessary and shall be called by her upon the written request of any regular or associate member chapter.
- F. **QUORUM.** Three-fourths (3/4) of the member chapters' voting delegate shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.
- G. **VOTING.**
  - 1. The voting members of the Panhellenic Council shall be one delegate from each member group.
  - 2. A majority vote shall be required to carry all other questions, except where otherwise outlined in the Constitution, By-Laws or other documents for the Panhellenic Council.

#### **ARTICLE VII. PANHELLENIC ADVISER**

- A. The Vice President for Student Affairs shall appoint the Panhellenic Adviser.
- B. By a three-fourths (3/4) vote, the Panhellenic Council can petition the Vice President for Student Affairs to appoint a new adviser.
- C. The adviser shall serve in advisory capacity to the Panhellenic Council.

#### **ARTICLE VIII. STANDING COMMITTEES**

Such Standing Committees and special officers as may be necessary to carry out the work of the Panhellenic Council shall be appointed by its Executive Board to serve during the tenure in office of the Board that appoints them.

#### **ARTICLE IX. UNANIMOUS AGREEMENTS AND POLICIES**

- A. All members of the Panhellenic Council shall act in accordance with fundamental Panhellenic policies established by National Panhellenic Conference in the UNANIMOUS AGREEMENTS (The Panhellenic Compact, Standards of Ethical Conduct, College Panhellenic Agreements, Agreement on Questionnaires and Constitutions and The Jurisdiction of a College Panhellenic Council).
- B. All Panhellenic Council rules and policies shall be in harmony with the UTSA Student Code of Conduct, the specific policies of the individual national/international groups, the National Panhellenic Conference Manual of Information or federal, state or municipal laws, which govern the University.
- C. The PHC Constitution and PHC Recruitment Rules are all official documents of the Panhellenic Council. All member chapters must follow the guidelines, policies, procedures and obligations outlined in and according to these documents. The only exception is that Associate member groups are not required to follow the PHC Recruitment Rules.

## ARTICLE X. VIOLATIONS

- A. Violation of any regulations of this Constitution or its related Bylaws, of recruiting rules, of rules concerning matters other than recruiting, of the National Panhellenic Conference UNANIMOUS AGREEMENTS shall be the occasion for penalties established by the Panhellenic Council in conformity with those recommended by National Panhellenic Conference.
- B. Any dispute growing out of the violation of Panhellenic Council rules and regulations shall be adjusted through arbitration principles of the National Panhellenic Conference.
- C. All member and associate member chapters must abide by university, state, federal, and city rules and regulations.

## ARTICLE XI. AMENDMENTS

This Constitution may be amended by three-fourths (3/4) vote of the voting members of Panhellenic Council. Amendments should be proposed by the voting delegate of any member chapter in writing and submitted to the Executive Board one week before the proposed amendments are to be read and voted upon.

## BYLAWS OF THE PANHELLENIC COUNCIL

### ARTICLE I. FINANCE

- A. **FISCAL YEAR.** The fiscal year of the Panhellenic Council shall be from January 1 to December 31.
- B. **CONTRACTS.** The signature of the President and counter signed by the Secretary or the Panhellenic Advisor shall be required to bind the Panhellenic Council.
- C. **CHECKS.** All checks issued on behalf of the Panhellenic Council shall be signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the President or the Panhellenic Advisor.
- D. **PAYMENTS.** All payments due to the Panhellenic Council shall be made to the Treasurer, who shall record them. Checks for payments shall be made payable to the Panhellenic Council (PHC).
- E. Should the Panhellenic Council cease to exist at UTSA, all funds will revert to the general Greek Life budget to be used for programming for the Greek community.
- F. **MEMBERSHIP DUES**
  - 1. **Amount.** The dues of each Panhellenic Council member chapter shall be an assessment per active member and new member. The amount of such dues shall be:
    - a. Eight (8) dollars per regular and provisional active and ten (10) dollars per regular and provisional new member
    - b. Seven (7) dollars per member of the associate group per semester,
    - c. Dues are payable by a single check per chapter or inter-departmental transfer.
  - 2. **Time of Payment.** The dues of each Panhellenic Council member and associative member of each chapter shall be payable by a date and time set by the Executive Board.
  - 3. **Failure to pay dues** shall result in a five percent (5%) additional weekly fee after a one-week grace period. Any chapter that fails to pay fines or dues within 30 days of receiving a bill will receive one or more of the following: not be represented in recruitment publications, not be allowed to participate as a team in intramurals, not be able to participate in Panhellenic activities, and/or have other privileges revoked by the Executive Board.
- G. **CHAPTER/MEMBERSHIP FINES**
  - 1. Each Chapter must have thirty percent (30%) of its Chapter present at the Mandatory dates set forth on the Panhellenic Council calendar. The Chapter will be fined \$50.00 per mandatory event, if a Chapter does not have thirty percent (30%) of its members present. If all fines are not paid in full by the last Panhellenic Council meeting of the semester, then the Chapter will not be able to register as an organization until all fines are paid in full with the Panhellenic Council. The members present must stay during the duration of the event.
  - 2. An Executive Officer, Delegate, or Assistant should notify the Panhellenic Advisor or the Secretary at least two-four hours prior to the meeting time, if that person cannot attend the meeting. There is a \$10.00 fine for fine for being tardy, missing a meeting or an unexcused absence. The junior delegate shall incur a \$5.00 fine for being tardy, missing a meeting, or an unexcused absence. If the delegate does not pay the fine in full by the end of the month, then that particular chapter will not have a vote until all fines are paid
    - a. The individual chapters are responsible for paying the fines accrued by the Delegates
    - b. The Executive Officers and Chairs are individually responsible for the fines they accrue.
    - c. Excused absences include illness, family emergencies and anything else deemed appropriate by the Executive Board.
  - 3. Loss or damage to an officer notebook will result in a \$20.00 fine.
  - 4. Loss or damage to the NPC Manual of Information (Green Book) will result in the cost of the manual.
  - 5. Fines will be assessed if items are not turned in by the specific due date. The fine will be announced when the due date is announced. The Panhellenic Council allows the Executive Board the ability to determine the amount of the fine on a case-by-case basis.

6. Rosters and/or grade releases are due no later than two (2) weeks following their distribution. There will be a \$10.00 fine for each week they are late.
7. All payments will be presented to the treasurer, president or Greek Advisor at the beginning of Panhellenic meetings.
8. A service charge of \$25.00 will be added to all returned checks, personal or chapter.

## ARTICLE II. ACADEMICS

- A. No member who does not maintain a 2.30 term GPA shall participate in chapter sponsored intramural or Greek Week events, except for those that are mandatory. If a member on scholastic probation does participate in the aforementioned events the chapter will be disqualified from intramurals the entire semester or from all Greek Week events.
- B. All chapters must have on file a current plan of action for probation terms for members that do not maintain a 2.30 term grade point average.
- C. No Panhellenic sororities will conduct a mixer with a fraternity that is on scholastic probation.
- D. Each member group must maintain a minimum All Chapter, Active and New Member GPA of 2.30 each semester. The GPA requirement will increase by .10 every semester Beginning Fall 2007 until the requirement reaches a 2.5 GPA. Any group not meeting this minimum expectation will face University academic probation.
- E. Any chapter failing to achieve the minimum Chapter, Active or New Member GPA shall be placed on probation & lose all social privileges for the first semester. If a group fails to meet the academic requirement for a second semester they will lose recognition from the Panhellenic Council.
- F. A chapter placed on academic probation/suspension shall develop a specific plan of action for the chapter as a whole to be signed by both the President and Scholarship chair and be turned in to the Panhellenic President by the second General Assembly meeting of the semester or be assessed or fine of \$25 for each day it is late.
- G. All chapter scholarship chairs or scholarship committee members must attend a Scholarship roundtable at the beginning and end of each semester or be subject to a \$25 fine per roundtable.
- H. The Panhellenic Council shall recognize the chapter with the highest cumulative grade point average at the end of each semester with a reward as well as recognize the chapter with the most improved grade point average.
- I. A chapter placed on academic probation shall not participate in Greek Week events, except for those that are mandatory.

## ARTICLE III. SELECTION OF OFFICERS

- A. The elected officers of the UTSA Panhellenic Council (Executive Board) shall be the President, Vice President of Programming and Judicial Affairs, Vice President of Scholarship & Accreditation, Vice President of Public Relations, Vice President of Membership, Secretary, and Treasurer
- B. The President must have served on the Panhellenic Council for at least one-year as an Executive Officer or assistant
- C. All Panhellenic Executive Officers must be in good standing with their respective chapters and Panhellenic Council; having fulfilled all financial obligations and a Panhellenic Cumulative grade point average. Each elected officer must be a member of a National Panhellenic Conference chapter.
- D. Slating Process
  1. Application to be completed and returned by the date set by the Panhellenic Executive Board.
  2. A slating committee is established.
    - a. The committee shall be composed of the Greek Advisor, any out-going officers that are not seeking an elected position in the Panhellenic Council, and any other professional staff.
    - b. The committee shall interview each qualified candidate and propose a slate to the Panhellenic Council.
  3. The Panhellenic Council shall vote on the proposed slate.
- E. Voting
  1. Each senior delegate shall have one vote.
  2. Each outgoing Panhellenic Executive Officer shall have one vote.
  3. Should the slate not be passed as a whole, nominations will be taken from the floor and voting will take place for each office.
  4. In case of a tie, the Nominating Committee shall have one vote.

## ARTICLE IV. OFFICER DUTIES

- A. All Officers shall
  1. Attend all retreats and conferences mandated by Panhellenic Council.
  2. Sign an officer agreement, stating that they understand and will perform all duties outlined in the by-laws. This contract shall be signed no later than twenty-four (24) hours after Officer Installation.
  3. Performs other duties as necessary as a member of the Panhellenic Executive Board.
- B. The President shall:
  1. Have overall responsibility for the operation of the Panhellenic Council.
  2. Call and preside at all regular and special meetings of the Panhellenic Council and Panhellenic Executive Board.

3. Review, approve and sign all Panhellenic Council checks and contracts involving the Panhellenic Council.
  4. Serve as ex-officio of all Panhellenic Council Committees with voice but no vote.
  5. Report as required to the National Panhellenic Conference Area Adviser.
  6. Maintain a complete and up-to-date President's file which will include a copy of the current Panhellenic Council Constitution, Bylaws and Standing Rules; the current Panhellenic Council budget; the current NPC Manual of Information and related materials, current correspondence and materials received from her NPC Area Adviser; her copies of the College Panhellenic Reports to the Area Adviser and other pertinent materials to be passed on.
  7. Perform all other duties usually pertaining to this office.
  8. Attend all campus affairs representing the Panhellenic Council.
  9. Attend weekly meetings with Panhellenic Advisor.
- C. The Vice President of Programming and Judicial Affairs shall:
1. Perform the duties of the President in her absence, inability to serve, or at her call.
  2. Serve as Chairman of the Judicial Board.
  3. Oversee the standing committees of the Panhellenic Council as appointed by the president.
  4. Responsible for planning and implementing Officer Training and Transition.
  5. Plan and Oversee Sisterhoods and Educational Programs
  6. Oversee Scholarship program including working to create programs aimed at developing scholarship as well as creating a Panhellenic Scholarship Fund
- D. The Vice President of Scholarship & Accreditation
1. Oversee scholarship programming
  2. Create programs aimed at developing scholarship
  3. Create a Panhellenic scholarship fund
  4. Oversee Month of the Scholar activities
  5. Oversee scholarship roundtables
  6. Responsible for keeping member chapters updated on the status of their GEAR (Greek Expectations and Accreditation Review) reports
  7. Presenting the member chapters with opportunities to successfully meet the GEAR requirements
- D. The Vice President of Public Relations shall:
1. Develops all publicity for Panhellenic Council events.
  2. Aids in the development of publicity for Greek Life events, in conjunction with the Vice President External of the Interfraternity Council and Multicultural Greek Council.
  3. Serves as the official liaison to the Interfraternity Council (IFC), Multicultural Greek Council (MGC), Student Government Association, Campus Activities Board (CAB), Student Organization Council, and VOICES.
  4. Oversee All Greek Mixers and standing committees as appointed by the President
- E. The Secretary shall:
1. Keep an up-to-date roll call of the members of Panhellenic Council at meetings.
  2. Keep full minutes of all meetings of the Panhellenic Council, the Executive Board and a record of all action taken by the Executive Board. Submit copies of these minutes to the NPC Area Advisor
  3. Maintain a complete and up-to-date file that will include the minutes of the meetings of the Panhellenic Council and its Executive Board from the date of its organization and current correspondence.
  4. Be responsible for the official correspondence of the Panhellenic Council unless provided for otherwise.
  5. Work with the Vice President of Programming and Scholarship on Scholarship correspondence
  6. Develop effective means of communication with chapters and delegates
- F. The Treasurer shall:
1. Be responsible for the general supervision of the finances of the Panhellenic Council.
  2. Be responsible for the preparation of the annual budget and, following its approval by the Panhellenic Council provide a copy to each Panhellenic Council member chapter.
  3. Receive all payments due to the Panhellenic Council, collect all dues, and give receipts.
  4. Be responsible for the prompt payment of all bills of the Panhellenic Council.
  5. Maintain up-to-date financial records; give a financial report at each regular meeting of the Panhellenic Council and an annual report at the close of her term of office.
  6. Oversee Panhellenic Scholarship Fund
- G. The Vice President of Membership shall:
1. Serve as the Chairman of the Recruitment Committee.
  2. Plan, coordinate, and direct formal and informal recruitment periods.
  3. Aid in the selection and training of the Recruitment Counselors.
  4. Plan, coordinate and direct Recruitment Counselor activities.
  5. Perform all other duties pertaining to recruitment.
- H. Vice President of Programming and Judicial assistant shall:
1. Work in Collaboration with the Vice President of Programming and Judicial

2. Oversee Philanthropic activities including planning for the council as well as assisting chapters to ensure G.E.A.R. expectations are met.
3. Vice President of Public Relations Assistant shall serve as an assistant to the Vice President External, thereby helping to fulfill the responsibilities of the Vice President External's duties.
  1. Work in collaboration with the Vice-President of Public Relations
  2. Oversee media correspondence
  3. Advertise Panhellenic as well as Chapter programs and events
4. Vice President of Membership Assistant shall:
  - a. Work in collaboration with the Vice President Membership.

## **ARTICLE V. STANDING COMMITTEES**

Standing Committees and special officers may be necessary to carry out the work of the Panhellenic Council. Standing Committees and special officers shall be appointed by the President and Executive Board and approved by the Panhellenic Council. They are to serve only during the tenure of the Executive Board that appoints them.

## **ARTICLE VI. TOTAL CHAPTER SIZE**

The Total Chapter Size is the allowable chapter size, as determined by the Panhellenic Council at the University of Texas at San Antonio. The Total Chapter Size allowable is sixty (60); this includes both new members and initiated members. Each chapter is entitled to pledge the full Quota at anytime during the year, even if, by doing so, the allowable Total Chapter Size is exceeded and the formal recruitment period is over.

Vacancies in the Chapter Membership Roll that result when a member withdraws or is suspended from her chapter affiliation, or is officially granted inactive status, transfers, graduates, or drops out of college can only be "refilled" if the chapter is below Total.

## **ARTICLE VII. HAZING**

All forms of hazing pledge day and/or pre-initiation activities, which are defined, as hazing shall be banned.

Hazing is defined as any action taken or situation created intentionally, whether on or off chapter premises, to produce mental or physical discomfort, embarrassment, harassment or ridicule. Such activities and situation include creation of excessive fatigue; physical and psychological shocks; wearing publicly apparel which is conspicuous and not normally in good taste; engaging in public stunts and jokes; morally degrading or humiliating games and activities; late night sessions which interfere with scholastic activities; and any other activities which are not consistent with the regulations and policies of the educational institution.

## **ARTICLE VIII. EXTENSION AND EXPANSION**

- A. Extension: The addition of a National Panhellenic Conference chapter to the Panhellenic Council. Extension will be considered under the following:
  - B. When all NPC chapters at the University of Texas at San Antonio are close to or over Total the Panhellenic Council shall consider raising Total or adding another chapter. A three-fourths (3/4) majority of the voting members of the regular and provisional member groups shall be required to change Total or to go through the Extension process.
  - C. Consideration should be given to NPC chapters that have previously had chapters on the campus and to those NPC chapters, which have filed letters expressing an interest in the campus.
  - D. The Panhellenic Council will follow all NPC Extension Guidelines.
  - E. Expansion: The addition of a non-National Panhellenic Conference chapter as an Associate member to the Panhellenic Council.
  - F. Panhellenic Council will follow the expansion procedures outlined by the University. These procedures are available through the PHC Advisor.
  - G. A three-fourths (3/4) majority of the voting members of the Panhellenic Council shall be required to accept Associate Members to the Panhellenic Council.

## **ARTICLE XI, THE AFFIRMATION OF RECOGNIZED FRATERNITIES AND SORORITIES & THE DENOUNCEMENT OF UNRECOGNIZED GROUPS**

- A. University of Texas at San Antonio (UTSA) fraternities and sororities are expected to hold themselves to higher standards.
- B. UTSA fraternities and sororities strive to adhere to all policies and procedures of UTSA.
- C. Unrecognized fraternities and sororities at UTSA are acting outside the policies and procedures of the Interfraternity Council, Panhellenic Council and the University; unrecognized fraternities at UTSA are not held accountable to the same high standards as those that are recognized; and we are concerned for students' health and safety that choose to join an organization that is not recognized.
- D. The Panhellenic Council identifies the following groups as having followed all policies & procedures of UTSA to be considered a recognized fraternity or sorority on campus:

1. Alpha Lambda Tau
  2. Alpha Omicron Pi
  3. Alpha Sigma Alpha
  4. Delta Sigma Phi
  5. Kappa Alpha Psi
  6. Gamma Phi Beta
  7. Phi Mu
  8. Lambda Chi Alpha
  9. Sigma Kappa
  10. Omega Delta Phi
  11. Sigma Lambda Alpha
  12. Phi Gamma Delta
  13. Alpha Kappa Alpha
  14. Phi Iota Alpha
  15. Epsilon Sigma Alpha
  16. Sigma Phi Epsilon
  17. Sigma Pi
  18. Tau Kappa Epsilon
- D. The Panhellenic Council Identifies the following groups as having lost campus recognition in the last two years:
1. Alpha Tau Omega
- E. The Panhellenic Council has Identified that the following groups have been formed by UTSA students and they are calling themselves social fraternities and sororities:
1. Delta Iota Kappa (DIK)
  2. Theta Iota Theta (TIT)
- F. The organizations that are operating outside the policies or procedures should not be allowed by Student Activities or the University to recruit, hold meetings or advertise events on campus.
- G. If and when an organization, which is operating outside the policies and procedures, presents to IFC (in request to return to campus), the Council should take into consideration any and all actions of the organization and its members during the period they were not recognized on campus.
- H. Advertising for unrecognized fraternities or sororities by members of National Panhellenic sororities will not be tolerated.
- I. Attendance of any Panhellenic woman to any unrecognized fraternities formal or social events shall be prohibited.
- J. The apparel of unrecognized fraternities is also prohibited to be worn by Panhellenic women.
- K. The UTSA Panhellenic Council will write letters to area collegiate panhellenics each semester to notify them of unrecognized groups.

## **ARTICLE XII. Greek Expectation & Accreditation Review (GEAR)**

- A. Member chapters must meet three of the four categories of GEAR each semester to remain in good standing with the Panhellenic Council
- B. Member chapters who fail to meet three of the four categories for the first semester will be required to meet with the Vice President of Scholarship and Accreditation twice a semester to create a plan of action to meet these expectations
- C. Member chapters who fail to meet these requirements for the second semester will be placed on probation, required to meet twice a semester with the Vice President of Scholarship and Accreditation, and will lose social and intramural privileges for the semester
- D. Member chapters who fail to meet these requirements for the third semester will lose recognition from the Panhellenic Council

## **ARTICLE XII. RULES OF ORDER**

The Panhellenic Council shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised, except in matters specifically provided for in the Bylaws, and Standing Rules.

## **ARTICLE XIII. AMENDMENTS**

- A. These Bylaws maybe amended by three-fourths (3/4) majority vote of the voting members of the Panhellenic Council, provided notice of the proposed amendment has been given (in writing) at the preceding regular meeting.
- B. All amendments to the constitution and bylaws take effect only after approval by the Program Advisor for Greek Life.

PHC CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS

Created on: date unknown  
Amended on: November 2008